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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REVIEW REPORT

We have reviewed the balance sheet of Garanti Faktoring Hizmetleri A.S. (“the Company™) as of
30 June 2013 and the related statements of income, changes in shareholders® equity and cash flows
for the six month period then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility, as independent auditors, is to issue a report on these
financial statements based on our review.

We conducted our review in accordance with the accounting rules and policies, and the accounting
and auditing standards, set out by the Banking Regulation and Supervision Board. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the review to obtain limited assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. A review is principally limited to reviewing financial
statements by applying analytical procedures, inquiring as to the integrity of the financial
statements and making inquiries of management fo obtain information, it is substantially less in
scope than an audit and therefore provides a lesser assurance. We have not performed an audit and
accordingly we do not express an audit opinion.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
accompanying financial statements do not give a true and fair view of the financial position, the
results of its operations and its cash flow, of Garanti Faktoring Hizmetleri A.S. for the period
ended 30 June 2013 in accordance with the regulations, communiqués and circulars announced by
the Banking Regulation and Supervision Board in respect of accounting and financial reporting
and pronouncements made by the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency.

DRT BAGIMSIZ DENETIM VE SERBEST MUHASEBECI MALI MUSAVIRLIK A.S.
Member of DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU LIMITED

Hasan Kilig
Partner

Istanbul, 26 July 2013

Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited



GARANTI FAKTORING HIiZMETLERI A.S.
BALANCE SHEET AS OF 30 JUNE 2013

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish lira (“Thousands of TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

! Reviewed Andited
ASSETS Notes | 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
: TL I FC TOTAL TL FC | TOTAL
L CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3 1 - 1 1 - 1
jpLLe FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 4 73% 44 117 226 2,035‘ 2,261
| AND LOSS (Net) ! i
12.1 Financial Assets Held for Trading 4.1 - - . 1,984 1,984
12.2 Financial Assets at Fair Valug Through Profit and Loss -; - - - - -
23 Derivative Financial Assets Held for Trading 42 73 i 44 i 17! 226. 51 277
IL  BANKS 5 256/ 1,895 2,151 102,977 5,348 108,325 |
IV.  AGREEMENTS -l - - . _g .
V.  FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE (Net) 6 - 2 2 - 2 2
:VI. FACTORING RECEIVABLES 7 1,375,642 ‘ 277,870 | 1,553,512 1,539,173 288,537 1,827,710
i6.) Discount Factoring Receivables ; 530,443 9,721: 540,164 477,302 6,690: 483,952
.6.1.1  Domestic : 540,918 5,773 346,691 488,479 4,074 . 492,553,
6.1.2  Foreign 4,021 4,021 - 2,6891 2,689
6.1.3  Uneamed Income (-) (10,475)i (73) (10,348) (11,177) (73) (11,250);
6.2 Other Factoring Receivables 845,199 268,149 1,113,548 1,061,871 281,847 1,343,718
jﬁ.ll Domestic 845,199 335,724 1,070,923! 1,061,871 | 246,677 l,308,:‘|48i
1622 Foreign - 42,425 42,425 35,170 35170
'VIL. NON-PERFORMING RECEIVABLES 8 9,559 - 9,559 6,774 ' - 6,774
%7.: Non-Performing Factoring Receivables 34,633 - 34,633 26,583 - 26,583
7.2 Specific Provisions (-} (23,074} - (25,074} (19,809): - (19,809

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS FOR HEDGING : )
VIII, PURPOSES - - - - - -
1 B
Is.l Fair Value Hedging - - -‘ - - -
i8.2 Cash Flow Hedging - - -l - - -
8.3 Net Foreipn Investment Hedging - - B - - -
.lx. INVESTMENTS HELD TO MATURITY {Net) - - -i - - -
X. SUBSIDIARIES (Net) - - - - - -
XL  ASSOCIATES (Net) R _ _ . ) R
;XII. JOINT YENTURES (Net) - - - - - -
XIIL  TANGIBLE ASSETS (Net) ¢ 302 - 802, 3712 - $72
1XI\’. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Net) 10 1,821° - 1,821/ 1,542 - 1,542
141 Goodwil - - . - . -
142 Other : 1,821 - 1,821 1,542 - 1,342
XV. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 17 i 7,952 - 7,952 6,544 - 6,544
XVL ASSETSHELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED I - - -I - - -
i OPERATIONS (Net) ‘ i 1
1161 Held For Sale - - - - - -
! i6.2  Discontinued Operations - - - - - -‘
iX\’lI. OTHER ASSETS 12 1,607: 178 1,785 1,032 164 1,196
: ! i

TOTAL ASSETS ‘ 1,397,713 \ 279,989 1,677,702 1,659,141 296,086 1,955,227

The aceompanying notes form an integral pan of these financial statements.
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GARANTI FAKTORING HiZMETLERI A.S.
BALANCE SHEET AS OF 30 JUNE 2013

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish lira (“Thousands of TL’") unless otherwise indicated.)

| Reviewed : ' Audited
LIABILITIES ‘Notes 30 June 2013 L 31 December 2012

; TL FC ‘ Total T TL | FC Total

I. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 43 2,527 29 1556 2 3l 40!

HELD FOR TRADING i ; | ‘ |
ill- FUNDS BORROWED 13 1,227,819 319,482 1,547,301 ‘ 1,418,443 419,015 1,837,458
qII.  FACTORING PAYABLES 7 716 1,932 2,648 404 2,493 2,897
!IV. MARKETABLE SECURITIES ISSUED (Nef) ' - \ R ‘ . 4 .
4.1 Bills - -\ - - - -

42 Asset-backed Securities - -T - - - -
43 Bonds ‘ - - - - - -
v, SUNDRY CREDITORS 14 3,626} 288: 3,914 } 3,895: 398 4,293
'VI.  OTHER LIABILITIES Iz - - - - 13 113
‘VII. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES -‘ - - | - - -
| FOR HEDGING PURPOSES ‘ | }

71 Fair Value Hedging - . - - - -
72 Cash Flow Hedging - - _ .
73 Net Foreign Investment Hedging - - - .| - -
VIIL. TAXES PAYABLE P15 3,570 - 3,570 3,335 ‘ 3,335,
IX. PROVISIONS 16 1,923 - 1,923 2,080 - 2,080,
%9.1 Reserves for Restructuring : . - | - .
9.2 Reserves For Employee Benefits ' 1,619 - 1,61% 1,715 - 1,715
I9.3 Other Provisions . 304 . 304 | 365 - 365
X. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY - - - i - - -
IXI PAYABLES RELATED TO ASSETS - - - | - - -

FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS :

11.1 Held for Sale : - - - ‘ - - -
‘112 Discontinued Operations B - - | - N _
X1, SUBORDINATED LOANS ; . . 4 . R
;xm. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY L 115,790 - 115,790 ' 105,011 - 105,011
{13.1  Paid-in Capital 21,000 - 21,000, | 21,000: - 21,000
132  Capital Reserves : 24,844 24844 24,844 24,344
13.2,1 Share Premium ’ - - A - N -
.13.2.2  Share Cancellation Profits - = - - - -
1323 Marketable Securitiss Revaluation Reserve - - - - - -
|13.2.4 Tangible and Intangible Assets Revaluation Reserve 22,722 - 22722 ' 22,722 _i 22,722
13.2.5 Bonus Shares Obtained From Associates : -. - - - . -

Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures :
i13.26 Hedping Funds {Effective Portion) - - -l - - -
‘13.2.7 Accumulated Revaluation Reserves on Assets Held : - - - - - -
For Sale and Discontinued Oper-ations .
11328 Other Capital Reserves 2,122 - 2,122, 2,122 - 2,122
‘13.3  Profit Reserves 59,167 - 59,167 38,707 - 38,707

13.3.1 Legal Reserves : 4,198 - 4,198! 3,286 - 1286

13.3.2 Statutory Reserves - . -i -l - -
:13.3.3  Extraordinary Reserves : 54,969, - 54,969 35421 - 35421
‘13.3.4 Other Profit Reserves - - - R - - -
134 Profitor Loss 10,779 - 10,779 ! 20,460i N 20,460
:134.1 Retained Eamnings / (Accumulated Losses) - - - i N - -
13.4.2 Current Year Profit/Loss 10,779 R 10,779 20,460 - 20,460

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 1,355,971 321,731; 1,677,702}\ 1,533,170 422,057 1,955,227

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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GARANTI FAKTORING HiZMETLERI A.S.

STATEMENT OF OFF - BALANCE SHEET ITEMS AS OF 30 JUNE 2013

{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish lira (“Thousands of TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

Reviewed ! Audited

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS Notes 30 June 2013 ! 31 December 2012

TL FC " Total L | FC " Tom
|

iL IRREVOCABLE FACTORING OPERATIONS 367,790 93,011; 460,801 151,261 11,572f 162,833
. REVOCABLE FACTORING OPERATIONS : 541,373 111,1 181 652,491 651,774 62,483 714,257
Il GUARANTEES TAKEN 21 37425 1,658,282 1,693,707 33,910 1,130,524 1,164,434
IV,  GUARANTEES GIVEN 26.2 2,279 -l 2,279, 1,148 - 1,148
'V, COMMITMENTS 26.3 4,983 5,043 10,026' . 3415 5567 8,982
15.] Imevocable Commitments 4,983 5.043 10,026, | 34151 5,567 8,982:
15.2 Revocable Commitments - -\ - . - -
1321  Lease Commitments - -l - - - -
'52.1.1 Finance Lease Commitments - -l - - - .
:5.2.1.2 Operaticnal Lease Commitments - - - - - -
5.22  Other Revocable Commitments - - - b - -
YI.  DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 264 128,155 196,108 324,263 90,845 240,086 330,931
6.1 Derivative Financial Instruments for Hedging Purposes , - - - . - -
i6.1.1  Fair Value Hedges : - - - - -
i6.1.2  Cash Flow Hedges - - - - - -
i6.1.3  Net [nvestment Hedges - - . - - -
162 Derivative Financial Instruments Held For Trading 128,155 196,108 324,263 90,845 240,086 330,931
16.2.1  Forward Buy/Sell Transactions - - - - - -
'622  Swap Buy/Sell Trensactions 128,155 196,108 324,263 90,845 240,086 330,931
'62.3  Options Buy/Sell Transactions B - - . . -
624  Futures Buy/Sell Transactions - - - - - -
625 Other - - - ; R - -
VIL.  ITEMS HELD IN CUSTODY 521,044 $5,829: 606,873 452,149 76,8641 529,013

TOTAL OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 1,603,049 2,149,391| 3752440 1,384,502 1,527,096 2,911,598

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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GARANTI FAKTORING HIiZMETLERI A.S.
INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish lira (“Thousands of TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

INCOME STATEMENT Revitwed " Andited T Reviewed
Nores 1 January - M) Jupe 2013 April~ 30 June 2013 L January
L OFERATING INCOME i 68353 33,783
FACTORING INCOME 68,353 33.763
Facioring Interest Incomae 36,039 27440
Discount 27.46% 14046
Onher 28,570 13354
Factoring Commission Income 12314 6343
Discount 7.766 3916
Cther 4548 2427 3,061
I  OPERATING EXPENSES () " (16,946) 290 (15.798)
24 Fetsonnel Expenses : {10,397) (3.141) (8,782)
23 Retivement Pay Provision Expenses (73) 37 [+l0]
23 Research and Development Expenses - - -
24 Geoeml Administrative Expenses {6.416) (3.114) (6,711}
25 Ouer (1] ) 315)
m. OTHER OPERATING INCOME 0 37696 10548 44,463
Interest income from Deposits 2,632 1.62% 121
Iitaresl income fom Reverse Repunchase Aprecments - . -
Inigrest income from Marketable S ocuritios - - 200
Interest Income from Financial Assets Held for Trding - - 48.
fnterest lacome Gom Financial Asscts al Fair Value Throvgh Profitand Loss - - A
Interest locome fom Financial Assas Available For Sale - . 133,
Inierst Income from Financial Assets [eld o Matusity - -
Dividend Income - . .
Inlezust Recdived from Money Market PLicements 403 - 133,840
Derivative Fmangial Transactions 603 - 23,840
Other - . -
Forciga Exchange Gains 33,904 13,813 19,825
Other 557 107 16
FINANCIAL EXPENSES () 2 Q7.059) (18.224) {40,428}
Intrest Expense on Fuads Dosowed {36,704) {18,035) (39,939}
Interest Expense on Fagioring Payables - - -
Finance Lease Expense - . -
litaest Expense oh Securilies [ssued B - -
Other Inicrest Expenscs L1} - [$3]
¥ Other Fess and Commissions 331 {189) (488)
v,  SPECTFIC PROVISION FOR XON-PERFORMING RECEIVADLES (1) 2 (5.577} {3.083) (L.507)
V1.  OTIIER OPERATING EXPENSES &) 2z (31589) (18.186) {43.476)
61  impak on Marketable Seouritics (-) - - .
§.1.1  Financial Assets at Fair Value Torough - -
Profitand Lass
4.1.2  Fizancial Assets Available For Sale - -
613 Financial Asscrs eld 1o Marrnity - -
Expense fom | on Tangible ad ible Asscts - - .
Impairment on Tangible Assois . .
Impairment om Assets Held for - -
Sale and Discontinued Operations -
6.2.3  lmpaimment on Goodwill _.
6,24 Impainent on Inngible Asscts . .
625  Impaimenton Subsidianies, Associates and Joint Vientures - - .
63 Losscs Bom Darivative Financial Transactions (6.454) (49E7) (23,523%)
64 Forcipn Exchange Losses 25422} (13.747F (19.439)
63 Ouner 73 L] 94)
VI NET OPERATING INCOAME 13478 6545 13785
VIL AMOUNT IN EXCESS RECORDED AS GAIN AFTER MERGER N - -
I NET MOXNETARY GAIN/LOSS . - -
X, PROFIT/LOSS ON CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE TAX lJ.tﬁs. 6545 13785
X1 TAXPROVISION FOR CONTINUING QTERATIONS {) it (2,699} 1.312) 2,770}
11.1  Currem Tax Charpe (4.107) 1,810y 4,332
112 Deforrad Tax Charge(-) a - -
113 Deferred Tax Benefit (+) 1,508 398 1,762
NET PERIGD PROFITA.083 FRON CONTINUING OPERATIONS 10,719 5235 11,015
INCOME OXN DISCONTISUED OPERATIONS - E -
Income on Assets Held for Sale - - -
Gain on Sale of Associales, Subsidiarics and Joint Venturs - -
Other Income on Discontinued Opaations - - .
EXPENSE ON DISCONTINUED GPERATIONS () - - -
Expcnscs on Assets Held foz Sale - -
Losses on Sale o Asseciates, Subsidiaries and Joiet Veoteres - - .
Other Expenses on Discontinued Opertions - - -
PROFIT/LOSS OX DISCONTINUER OTERATIONS BEFORE TAX - - -
TAX PROVISION FOR DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS () - - -
16.1 Cuncnl Tax Charpe - - -
162 Defemed Tan Charpe(+ . R R
16.3  Deferred Tax Benefit(-) - - .
XVIL NET PERIOD PROFITA.OSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - - -
XVIN, NET FERIOD PROFIT/AOSS 10,779 5231 11015
... Enmnings Toss Pey Share { Kurug (0.01 TL) per thousapd shayes) 24 513.2% 249.1% 33452

The accompanying noles fonn an inlegral pad of these fnancial staternents.
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GARANTI FAKTORING HIZMETLERI A.S.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish lira (“Thousands of TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

] I
|

‘ ‘ Reviewed
| ' 1 January - 30 June 2013

‘ Reviewed
I
I
i
!

i 1 January - 30 June 2012

Notes |
a F f
1A, CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ; i :
| ! ‘
1.1 Operating profit before changes in aperating assets and liabilities ‘ ‘ 15,3161 20,780
‘ | | : :
1.I.1  Interest/leasing income received 1 58,995 66,900}
1.1.2° Leasing expenses ; ‘ 692 633
‘1,1,3  Dividends received } ! - -
‘1.14  Fzes and commissions received 7 11,868 9,879
1.1.5  Other income \ : _ ; )
1.1.6  Collections from previously written off receivables Cos 312 1 179
1.1.7  Payments to personnel and service suppliers . ' (16,072} (15,538)
:1.1.8  Taxes paid S (2,297} - (2,263}
‘1.1,9  Other (38,182)| i (39,010}
: i
12 Changes in operating asscts and liabilities (123,172) i (26,862}
12,1  Net (increase) decrease in factering receivables 163,326 ‘ {311,847)!
Net (increase) decrease in other assets (589) i (374)!
Net increase (decrease) in factoring payables : (249) (653)
Net increase (decrease} in fuads borrowed (282,661} ! 285,423=
Net increase (decrease} in due payables ) - -
2 Net increase (decrease)} in other liabilities i ! {2,999y ! 589
I Net cash provided from operating activities {107,856) {6,082)1
|
|B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
52,1 Cash paid for purchase of joint ventures, associates and subsidiaries - -
2.2 Cash obtained from sale of joint ventures, associates and subsidiaries - -
23 Fixed assets purchases [N (] (855) (63)
12.4 Fixed assets sales : } - -
12.5 Cash paid for purchase of financial assets available for sale ; - (3.500)
12,6 Cash abtained from sale of financial assets available for sale - 3,712
%2.7 Cash paid fer purchase of financial assets held to maunty i .
238 Cash obtained from sale of firancial assets held to maturity - -
29 Other 2778 1,137
E[[, Net cash provided from investing activities ! 1,923 : 1,286
I .
! :
'C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES !
|
|
3] Cash obtained from funds borrowed and securities issued ! - -
32 Cash used for repayment of funds borrowed and securities issued ‘ ‘ - -
33 Capital increase ! N R
| | |
34 Dividends paid i - -
3.5 Payments for finance leases : ] )
3.6 Other | - -
IIL. Net cash provided from financing activities - -
Iv. Effect of change in foreign exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents : : 230 (17%)
V. Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents : (105,703} (4,975)
VI. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 107,855 7,092
VII. Cash and cash equivaleats at the end of the period 2,152 2,117

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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GARANTI FAKTORING HIZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

. (Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY

Aktif Finans Faktoring Hizmetleri A.S. was incorporated on 4 September 1990 in Turkey to provide
factoring services to industrial and commercial firms. The commercial title of Aktif Finans Faktoring
Hizmetleri A.S. was changed to Garanti Faktoring Hizmetleri A.S. (“the Company™) with the approval of
the General Assembly held on 27 March 2002. The Company offered its shares to public in 1993 with the
authorization of the Capital Markets Board (“CMRB”). The Company operates in accordance with the
Capital Markets Law and the Communiqué on the “The Establishment and Main Activities of Finance
Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies” issued by the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency
(“BRSA™,

Information about the Company’s shareholders and respective shares are as follows:
30 June 2013  Shareholding 31 December 2012 Shareholding

(%) (%)
Tiirkiye Garanti Bankas: AS 17.187 81,84 17.187 81,84
Tiirkiye Thracat Kredi Bankas1 AS 2.053 9,78 2.053 9,78
Publicly Trading 1.760 8,38 1.760 8,38
Capital 21.000 100,00 21.000 100,00

(*) The company applied to Capital Markets Board on 21 May 2013 to increase issued capital of the
Company from TL 21.000 to TL 79.500 by adding positive differences of capital inflation adjustment,
special funds arising from the sales gain of participation and extraordinary reserves, by the decision of the
Board of Directors dated May 3, 2013 with the 2013/035, with the consent of the Company's articles of
association 6 Article. As of the report date, the permitting process continues.

The shareholding of Tiirkiye Garanti Bankasi A.S. as of 30 June 2013 is 55,40% and Tiirkiye Garanti
Bankasi A.S. has obtained the remaining 26,44% shares from public shares via Istanbul Stock Exchange.
There is no change since 31 December 2012,

The Company has 199 employees as of 30 June 2013 (31 December 2012: 179)
The Company is registered in Turkey and operates at the following address:
Eski Bityitkdere Caddesi

Ayazaga Koy Yolu No:23 Kat:2 34396 Maslak / Istanbul

The Company provides factoring services with 11 branches substantially in one geographical segment
(Turkey).

Dividends Payable:

At the General Assembly Meeting of the company held on 29 March 2013, it has been decided
unanimously to appropriate the profit after tax in the financial statements prepared based on the
International Financial Reporting Standards in accordance with the Capital Markets Board Regulation
Serial: X1 No:29 to legal and extraordinary reserves, in line with the profit distribution principles stated in
the Company’s articles of association.

Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors based on the
Board of Directors decision dated 26 July 2013. The General Assembly has the authority to change the
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Basis of Presentation

Accounting Standards Applied

The Company maintains its books of account in accordance with the Turkish Accounting Standards
applying the Communiqué on “The Application of Uniform Charts of Accounts and its Guide Book In
Connection to the Establishment and Main Activities of Finance Leasing, Factoring and Financing
Companies and The Format of the Financial Statements for Public Presentation” published in the Official
Gazette No: 26525 on 17 May 2007.

The Company also applies the requirements of the Communiqué on the “Principles and Procedures of
Receivable Allowances to be Provided by Finance Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies”; which is
prepared based on the Communiqué on “The Application of Uniform Charts of Accounts and its Guide
Book in Connection to the Establishment and Main Activities of Financial Leasing, Factoring and
Financing Companies” published in the Official Gazette No:28627 on 24 April 2013; published in the
Official Gazette No: 26588 on 20 July 2007.

As per the Decree Law no. 660 published in the Official Gazette and become effective on 2 November
2011, the Additional Clause 1 of the Law no. 2499 was abolished and the Public Oversight, Accounting
and Auditing Standards Authority was established. The financial statements are prepared based on the
TAS/TFRS and the related statements and guidances announced by the Public Oversight, Accounting and
Auditing Standards Authority.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the revaluation of certain
financial instruments. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for assets.

Preparation of Financial Statements in Hyperinflationary Periods

Restatement adjustments have been made to compensate for the effect of changes in the general purchasing
power of the Turkish Lira, in accordance with Turkish Accounting Standards on “Preparation of Financial
Statements in Iyperinflationary Periods” (“TAS 29”) for the financial statements prepared until 31
December 2004. BRSA issued a circular on 28 April 2005 stating that the indicators requiring the
application of inflation accounting ceased to exist; consequently inflation accounting was not applied in the
financial statements after 1 January 2005,

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Changes in Accounting Policies

Changes in accounting policies are applied retrospectively and the prior period financial statements are
restated accordingly. The Company has applied the accounting policies in line with the prior financial year.

Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

If the changes in accounting estimates relate to only one period, changes are applied in the current period
but if changes in estimates relate to future periods, changes are applied both in the current and following
periods prospectively. Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively and prior period financial
statements are restated.

The management is required to apply accounting policies and make decisions, estimations and assumptions
that affect the reported assets, liabilities, income and expenses, in order to prepare the financial statements
in accordance with the Reporting Standards. Actual results may differ from those estimates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL*) unless otherwise indicated.)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors (Cont’d)

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed constantly. The effect of a change in accounting
estimates is recognized prospectively in the current and future periods. The main notes for the items
including estimates are as follows:

Note 4 — Financial Assets at fair value through profit and loss
Note 7 — Factoring receivables

Note 9 — Tangible Assets

Note 10 — Intangible Assets

Note 11 — Tax Assets and Liabilities

Note 16 — Provisions

Adoption of New and Revised International Financial Reporting Standards

(a) New and Revised IFRSs affecting the reported financial performance and / or financial
position

The following amendments to IFRSs have been applied in the current year and have affected the amounts
reported in these financial statements.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements. The Standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and
requires disclosures about fair value measurements. The scope of IFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both
financial instrument items and non-financial instrument items for which other IFRSs require or permit fair
value measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements, except in specified circumstances. In
general, the disclosure requirements in IFRS 13 are more extensive than those required in the current
standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative disclosures based on the three-level fair value
hierarchy required for financial instruments only under IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures are
extended by IFRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
(as part of the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle issued in May 2012)

The amendments to IAS 1 as part of the dnnual Improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle are effective for
the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

IAS 1 requires an entity that changes accounting policies retrospectively, or makes a retrospective
restatement or reclassification to present a statement of financial position as at the beginning of the
preceding period (third statement of financial position). The amendments to IAS 1 clarify that an entity is
required to present a third statement of financial position only when the retrospective application,
restaternent or reclassification has a material effect on the information in the third statement of financial
position and that related notes are not required to accompany the third statement of financial position.

IAS 19 Employee Benefits

The amendments to IAS 19 change the accounting for defined benefit plans and termination benefits. The
most significant change relates to the accounting for changes in defined benefit obligations and plan assets.
The amendments require the recognition of changes in defined benefit obligations and in fair value of plan
assets when they occur, and hence eliminate the 'corridor approach’ permitted under the previous version of
IAS 19 and accelerate the recognition of past service costs.

10
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(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
Adoption of New and Revised International Financial Reporting Standards

(a) New and Revised IFRSs affecting the reported financial performance and / or financial
position

1AS 19 Employee Benefits

The amendments require all actuarial gains and losses to be recognized immediately through other
comprehensive income in order for the net pension asset or liability recognized in the statement of financial
position to reflect the full value of the plan deficit or surplus. Furthermore, the interest cost and expected
return on plan assets used in the previous version of IAS 19 are replaced with a ‘net-interest’ amount,
which is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The
amendments to IAS 19 require retrospective application.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Hems of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments introduce new terminology for the statement of comprehensive income and income
statement. Under the amendments to IAS 1, the ‘statement of comprehensive income’ is renamed the
‘statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income’ and the ‘income statement’ is renamed the
‘statement of profit or loss’. The amendments to TAS 1 retain the option to present profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in either a single statement or in two separate but consecutive statements, However,
the amendments to IAS 1 require items of other comprehensive income to be grouped into two categories in
the other comprehensive income section: (a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met.
Income tax on items of other comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same basis - the
amendments do not change the option to present items of other comprehensive income either before tax or
net of tax. The amendments should applied retrospectively. Presentation of the other comprehensive
income has not been changed due to the reporting requirements of BRSA.

Amendments to IFRS 7 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities and the related disclosures
The amendments to IFRS 7 require entities to disclose information about rights of offset and related
arrangements (such as collateral posting requirements) for financial instruments under an enforceable
master netting agreement or similar arrangement.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle issued in May 2012

*  Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment,

»  Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation; and

e  Amendments to IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting.

Amendments to IAS 16

The amendments to IAS 16 clarify that spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment should be
classified as property, plant and equipment when they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment

in IAS 16 and as inventory otherwise. The amendments to IAS 16 did not have a significant effect on the
Company’s financial statements.

11
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

24 Adoption of New and Revised International Financial Reporting Standards
(b).  New and Revised IFRSs applied with no material effect on the financial statements
Amendments to JAS 32

The amendments to IAS 32 clarify that income tax relating to distributions to holders of an equity
instrument and to transaction costs of an equity transaction should be accounted for in accordance with TAS
12 Income Tuaxes. The amendments to TAS 32 did not have a significant effect on the Company’s financial

statements.
Amendments to IAS 34

The amendments to IAS 34 clarify that disclosure of the total assets and total liabilities for a particular
reportable segment is only required if a measure of total assets or total liabilities (or both) is regularly
provided to the chief operating decision maker and there has been a material change in those measures
since the last annual financial statements. The amendments to IAS 34 did not have an effect on the
Company’s financial statements.

(c) New and Revised IFRSs affecting presentation and disclosure

The Company has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective;

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments’
Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures’

! Effective for annual pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2014,
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or afier 1 January 2015.

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Revenue

Factoring service income is composed of collected and accrued interest income and commission income
earned from advance payments made to customers.

A proportion of factoring invoice total obtained constitutes commission income.

Dividend revenue from investments is recognized when the sharcholders’ rights to receive payment have
been established.

Other interest income is accrued based on the effective interest rate which equals the estimated cash flows to
net book value of the related asset.

12
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

Financial Instruments

Financial Assets

All financial assets are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs except for those financial
assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair value and
recognized or derecognized on a trade date where the purchase or sale of a financial asset is under a
contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the timeframe established by the market
concerned.

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets as ‘at fair value
through profit or loss’ (FVTPL), ‘held-to-maturity investments’, ‘available-for-sale’ (AFS) financial assets
and ‘loans and receivables’. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and
is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset, or where
appropriate a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for financial assets other than those financial assets
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated under this category upon initial recognition. A financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term or achieved more relevant accounting
measurement. Derivatives are also categorized as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.

Credit linked notes are classified as financial assets held for trading and measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. They are measured at amortized cost when their fair value
cannot be reliably measured. Amortized cost is calculated using effective interest rate method.

Held to maturity investments

Investments in debt securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates that the
Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
investments. Held-to-maturity investments are recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest
method less impairment, with revenue recognized on an effective yield basis.

Available- for- sale financial assets

Quoted equity investments and quoted certain debt securities held by the Company that are traded in an
active market are classified as being available-for-sale financial assets and are stated at fair value.
Investments in unquoted equity investments that are not traded in an active market but are also classified as
available-for-sale financial assets and stated at cost since their value can not be reliably measured. Gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve with the exception of impairment losses, interest
calculated using the effective interest method, and foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary assets,
which are recognized in profit or loss. Where the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss.

13
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont>d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

Financial Assets (Cont’d)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Cont’d)

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognized in profit or loss when the Company’s
right to receive the dividends is established.

The fair value of available-for-sale monetary assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the prevailing rate at the end of the reporting period. The foreign
exchange gains and losses that are recognized in profit or loss are determined based on the amortized cost
of the monetary asset. Other foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive
income.

Factoring receivables and other receivables

Factoring receivables and other receivables are stated at fair value at initial recognition. Subsequent to
initial recognition, all receivables except for factoring receivables are carried at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. Factoring transactions are accounted for at carrying amounts in subsequent
reporting periods. The Company management believes that carrying amounts of factoring receivables
approximate to their fair values since amortization is taken into account at initial recognition.

Effective from 1 January 2008, in accordance with the Communiqué (No: 26588) on the “Principles and
Procedures of Receivable Allowances To Be Provided By Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing
Companies™ issued on 20 July 2007, special provision rate allocated for the factoring receivables
considering their guarantees are as follows: 20%, at a minimum, for factoring receivables overdue more
than 90 days not exceeding 180 days; 50%, at a minimum, for factoring receivables overdue more than 180
days not exceeding 360 days; and 100% for factoring receivables overdue more than 1 year. While the
Company previously allocated 100% provision for all doubtful factoring receivables which had no
significant collaterals without considering the time intervals above, the Company started to allocate special
provision in accordance with the Communiqué after 24 February 2012. For the postdated factoring
receivables of the clients for which special provision for their overdue receivables had been allocated, free
provision is provided based on the rates specified in the Communiqué.

14
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont*d)
Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

Financial Assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss are subject to impairment testing at
each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment of financial asset or
financial asset group. An entity shall assess at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impatred. A financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset. That loss event or
events must also have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets. For loans and receivables, the amount of impairment is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by impairment loss directly for all financial assets
except factoring receivables. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Changes in allowance accounts are recognized in profit or loss.

Specific provision is allocated for factoring receivables in accordance with the Communiqué (No: 26588)
on the “Principles and Procedures of Receivable Allowances To Be Provided By Financial Leasing,
Factoring and Financing Companies™ issued by the BRSA on 20 July 2007,

With the exception of available for sale equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortized cost would have been had the impairment not been recognized.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid
investments which their maturities are three months or less from date of acquisition and that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. The
carrying value of these assets approximates their fair value,

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Company’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign exchange rates and
interest rates. The Company uses derivative financial instruments (primarily foreign currency forward
confracts) to hedge its risks associated with foreign cwrrency fluctuations relating to certain firm
commitments and forecasted transactions. Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Derivatives are designated as held for trading and resulting gain or loss is recognized in
profit or loss immediately as the derivatives do not meet the criteria for hedge accounting despite they
provide economic hedge.

15
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instruments. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or other
financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value at initial recognition, and
remeasured at fair value as of the balance sheet date at each reporting period.

The changes in fair value are recognized in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss
incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction
costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
with interest expense recognized on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of financial lability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Tangible Assets and Amortization

Tangible assets are carried at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Tangible assets are depreciated principally on a straight-line basis considering the expected useful lives.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at each year end, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Expenses for the maintenance of tangible assets are normally recorded in profit and loss statement. Gain or
loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of tangible asset is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in profit or loss.

16
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

Intangible Assets
Intangible Fixed Assets Acquired

Intangible assets acquired separately are reported at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortization is charged on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period with
the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Computer Sofiware

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring
to use the specific sofiware. These costs are amortized over their useful lives.

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programs are recognized as an expense
as incurred. Costs that are directly associated with the development of identifiable and unique software
products controlled by the Company, and that will probably generate economic benefits exceeding costs
beyond one year, are recognized as intangible fixed assets. Costs include the sofiware development
employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. Computer software development costs
recognized as assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives.

Impairment of Assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell or value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets suffered impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Capital Increase

Capital increases by the existing shareholders are decided in the General Assembly Meetings and
accounted for over the registered nominal values,

Retirement Pay Provision

Under the Turkish law and union agreements, lump sum payments are made to employees retiring or
involuntarily leaving the Company. Such payments are considered as being part of defined retirement
benefit plan as per International Accounting Standard No. 19 (revised) “Employee Benefits” (“IAS 19”).

As per the revised TAS19, the actuarial gains/losses will be recognized under shareholder’s equity starting
from 1 January 2013,
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it is
probable that the Company will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation.

Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it {s virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Borrowing Costs

All borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Effects of Changes in Exchange Rates:

The financial statements of the Company are presented in the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates. The results and financial position of the Company is expressed in
thousands of TL, which is the functional currency of the Company, and the presentation currency for the
financial statements,

The foreign currency exchange rates used by the Company as of 30 June 2013 and 31 December 2012 are
as follows:

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
USD 1,9248 1,7826
EURO 2,5137 2,3517
GBP 2,9292 2,8708

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than TL (foreign
currencies) are recorded at the prevailing exchange rates at the transaction date. At each balance sheet date,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the balance
sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign cwrrencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when fair value is determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d))
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

Earnings per Share:

In Turkey, companies can raise their share capital by distributing “Bonus Shares” to shareholders from
retained earnings. In computing earnings per share, such “Bonus Share” distributions are treated as issued
shares. Accordingly, the retrospective effect for those share distributions is taken into consideration in
determining the weighted-average number of shares outstanding used in this computation.

Subsequent Events:

Events after balance sheet date comprise any event between the balance sheet date and the date of
authorization of the financial statements for publication, even if any event after balance sheet date occurred
subsequent to an announcement on the Company’s profit or following any financial information disclosed
to public,

The Company adjusts the amounts recognized in its financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the
balance sheet date if such subsequent events arise.

Finance Lease:

Lease- The Company as Lessee

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognized as assets of the Company at their fair value at the inception
of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to
the lesser is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned
between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability. Finance costs are charged to the profit or loss in accordance with the
Company’s general policy on borrowing costs as detailed above.

Rental payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant leases.

Segmental Information:

No segmental information is disclosed as the Company operates in Turkey and provides only factoring
services.

Taxation on Income:
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date.
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GARANTI FAKTORING HIZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

Taxation on Income (Cont’d):

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and are
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for
all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such assets and liabilities are not recognized if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition {(other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Company is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
mvestments and interests are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the
reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognized as an expense or income in profit or loss, except when they relate
to items credited or debited directly to equity, in which case the tax is also recognized directly in equity, or
where they arise from the initial accounting for a business combination. In the case of a business
combination, the tax effect is taken into account in calculating goodwill or determining the excess of the
acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over cost.
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GARANTI FAKTORING HiZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

{ Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL”) unless otherwise indicated.}

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

Statement of Cash Flows
In statement of cash flows, cash flows are classified according to operating, investment and finance
activities.

Cash flows from operating activities reflect cash flows mainly generated from factoring operations of the
Company.

Cash flows from investment activities express cash used in investment activities (direct investments and
financial investments) and cash flows generated from investment activities of the Company.

Cash flows relating to finance activities express sources of financial activities and payment schedules of the
Company.

30 June 2013 30 June 2012

Cash and Cash equivalents 1 -
Banks 2.151 2.117
2.152 2.117

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
TL FC TL FC
Cash and Cash equivalents 1 - I -
1 - - -

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS (Net)
Financial Assets Held for Trading

Details of the Company’s credit linked notes that are classified as financial assets held for trading as at 30
June 2013 and 31 December 2012 are as follows:

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
TL FC TL FC
Turkish Corporate Bonds - - - 1.984
- - - 1.984
30 June 2013
Carrying Amount Nominal Interest Rate (%) Maturity
Turkish Corporate Bonds
USD - -
31 December 2012
Carrving Amount Nominal Interest Rate (%) Maturity
Turkish Corporate Bonds
USD 1.984 1.981 2,32 4 January 2013

6.334 6.296
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GARANTI FAKTORING HIiZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL”} unless otherwise indicated.)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS (Net) (Cont’d)

Derivative Financial Assets Held for Trading

Derivative financial instruments are stated at fair value. Increase in fair value is classified as derivative
financial assets held for trading while decrease in fair value is classified as derivative financial liabilities
held for trading.

Details of derivative financial assets held for trading that arise from currency swap buy-sell agreements as
at 30 June 2013 and 31 December 2012 are as follows:

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
TL FC TL FC
Derivative financial assets
held for trading 73 44 226 51
73 44 226 51

Derivative Financial Liabilities Held for Trading

Details of derivative financial liabilities held for trading that arise from currency swap buy-sell agreements
as at 30 June 2013 and 31 December 2012 are as follows:

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
TL FC TL FC
Derivative financial liabilities
held for trading 2.527 29 2 38
2.527 29 2 38

BANKS
Details of banks as at 30 June 2013 and 31 December 2012 are as follows:

30 June 2013 31 December 2012

TL ¥C TL FC
Demand deposits 256 1.895 2.506 2.996
Time deposits - - 100.471 2.352
256 1.895 102.977 5.348

There is no restriction on bank deposits as at 30 June 2013 and 31 December 2012.

The bank balances, excluding income accruals, with original maturities shorter than 3 months which form
the basis of cash flows statement amount TL 2.151 as of 30 June 2013 (30 June 2012: TL 2.117).
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GARANTI FAKTORING HiZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL"} unless otherwise indicated.)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE

Financial assets available for sale are composed of unquoted equity share investments and public debt
securities held as collateral as at 30 June 2013 and 31 December 2012, These investments are stated at their
acquisition cost in the accompanying financial statements as the fair values of these investments cannot be

reliably measured.

30 June 2013

31 December 2012

Share Carrvin Share
Carrying Value Percentage Va]{le £ Percentage
% (*) Yo (*)
Investments in shares TL FC TL FC
International Factors Group SC - 2 1,49 - 2 1,42
- 2 - 2

(*) IFG ortak sayis1 degistikce hisse oram degigmektedir.

FACTORING RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Factoring Receivables

Details of factoring receivables as at 30 June 2013, 31 December 2012 are as follows:

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
TL FC TL FC
Domestic and import factoring 1386.117 231.497 1.550.350  250.751
receivables
Export factoring receivables - 46.446 - 37.859
Unearned interest income {10.475) 73 (11.177) {(73)
Factoring receivables, net 1.375.642 . 277.870 1.539.173 288.537
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GARANTI FAKTORING HIZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

FACTORING RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES (Cont’d)

Factoring Receivables (Cont’d)

The amount of past due but not impaired receivables of the Company is TL 2.792 Thousand (31 December
2012: 9.610 Thousand):

30 June 2013 31 December 2012

Overdue for 1 month 1.939 8.993
Overdue for 1-3 months 853 617

2.792 9.610
Factoring Payables

Details of short term factoring payables as at 30 June 2013 and 31 December 2012 are as follows:

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
TL FC TL FC
Factoring payables 716 1.932 404 2.493
716 1.932 404 2.493

Factoring payables represent the amounts of collections on behalf of factoring customers but have not
transferred to the factoring customer accounts yet.

NON-PERFORMING RECEIVABLES

Details of the Company’s non-performing factoring receivables and the provisions allocated for them as at
30 June 2013 and 31 December 2012 are as follows:

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
TL FC TL FC
Non-performing
factoring receivables 34.633 - 26.583 -
Specific provisions (25.074) - (19.809) -
Non-performing 9.559 - 6.774 .

receivables, net

Aging of nen-performing factoring receivables and specific provision allocated for them as at 30 June 2013
and 31 December 2012 are as follows:

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
Total non - .
. . .. Total non -performing . .
performing factoring Provision . . Provision
. factoring receivables
receivables
Overdue for 1-3 months 4.863 973 1.063 213
Overdue for 3-6 months 2.232 446 3.175 635
Overdue for 6-12 months 5416 2.708 4.447 2.238
Overdue for 1 year and over 22,122 20.947 17.898 16.723
Total 34.633 25.074 26.583 19.809
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GARANTI FAKTORING HiZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira {thousands of “TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

NON-PERFORMING RECEIVABLES (cont’d)

Amount of collaterals received for non-performing factoring receivables capped with the exposure is
TL 1.567 thousand (31 December 2012: TL 1.567 thousand).

The movement of provision for non-performing factoring receivables is as follows:

30 June 2013 30 June 2012
Balance as at 1 January 19.809 13.287
Provision provided for the period (*) 5.577 1.507
Collections during the period (**) {312) {179)
Balance at the end of the year 25.074 14.615

(*) The provisions provided during the period and the cancellation of the same provisions due to collections
during the period are presented as a net value,

(**) Refers to the the cancelled amount of a special provision, provided in prior periods, due to collections
made in the current period.

TANGIBLE ASSETS

The movement of tangible assets for the period ended as at 30 June 2013 is as follows:

1 January 2013 Additions Disposals 30 June 2013

Acquisition Cost
Furniture and fixtures 2.656 86 - 2.742
Vehicles 19 - - 19
I easehold improvements 1.119 15 - 1.134
3.794 101 - 3.895
Accumulated Depreciation 1 January 2013 Charge i;):rit:; Disposals 30 June 2013
Furniture and fixture 1.926 155 - 2.081
Vehicles ‘ 13 2 - 15
Leasehold improvements 983 14 - 997
2.922 171 - 3.093
Net book value 872 802
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GARANTI FAKTORING HiZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL"} unless otherwise indicated.)

TANGIBLE ASSETS (cont’d)

The movement of tangible assets for the period ended as at 30 June 2012 is as follows:

1 January 2012 Additions Transfers (*) 30 June 2012

Acquisition Cost
Furniture and fixtures 3.618 61 (1.110) 2.569
Vehicles 19 - - 19
Leasehold improvements 1.108 2 (1) 1.109
4.745 63 (1.111) 3.697
Accumulated Depreciation 1 January 2012 Charge ?err:(]:; Transfers 30 June 2012
Furniture and fixture 2.650 192 (1.084) 1.758
Vehicles 8 2 1 11
Leasehold improvements 943 16 8 967
3.601 210 (1.075) 2.736
Net book value 1.144 961

(*) Transfers refer to the reclassifications and corrections made by the Company, after revisiting its
tangible assets and the relevant accounting records during the period. As the net effect of these corrections
on income / expenses accounts is TL 262 thousand loss and therefore is not material on the overall financial
statements, it is presented in the current period income statement.

As of 30 June 2013 the insurance on tangible assets amounts to TL 1.490 thousand (31 December 2012: TL
1.390 thousand) and the insurance premium amounts to TL 3 thousand (31 December 2012: TL 3

thousand).
Useful lives
Vehicles 5
Furniture and fixture 3-15
Leasehold improvements 3-10
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The movement of intangible assets for the period ended as of 30 June 2013 is as follows:
1 Jan;;g Additions Transfers (*) Disposals 30 June 2013
Acquisition Cost
Rights 3.076 - - - 3.076
Other (Sofiware) 2471 754 - - 3.225
4,359 754 - - 6.301
Accumulated 1 January Charge for .
Amortization 2013 the period Transfers Disposals 30 June 2013
Rights 2.793 123 - - 2.916
Other ( Software) 1.212 352 - - 1.564
4.005 475 - - 4.480
Net book value 354 1.821
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GARANTI FAKTORING HiZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (cont’d)

The movement of intangible assets for the period ended as of 30 June 2012 is as follows:

1 January 2012 Additions Transfers (*) 30 June 2012
Acquisition Cost
Rights 3.072 - 4 3.076
Other (Software) 1.287 544 8 1.839
4.359 544 12 4.915
Accum.ulalied 1 January 2012 Charge for Fhe Transfers 30 June 2012
Amortization period
Rights 1.673 237 709 2.619
Other ( Software) 1.276 158 (471) 963
2.949 395 238 3.582
Net book value 1.410 . 1.333

(*) Please refer to Note 9

The Company does not have internally generated intangible asset as at 30 June 2013 and 31 December
2012,

Useful lives
Rights 3-5
Other 35

TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Corporate Tax

The Company is subject to the Turkish corporate taxes. Provision is made in the accompanying financial
statements for the estimated charge based on the Company’s results for the year.

Corporate tax is applied on taxable corporate income, which is calculated from the statutory accounting
profit by adding non-deductible expenses, and by deducting exempt income and other non-taxable income
(carried forward losses if available and investment incentives if preferred).

The effective tax rate in 2013 is 20% (2012: 20%).

In Turkey, advance tax returns are filed on a quarterly basis. The advance corporate income tax is
calculated as 20% of the income in the year 2013 (2012: 20%)

Losses can be carried forward for offset against future taxable income for up to 5 years. However, losses
cannot be carried back for offset against profits from previous periods.

In Turkey, there is no procedure for a final and definitive agreement on tax assessments. Companies file
their tax returns between 1 April and 25 April of the following year (between 1st and 25th of the following
4. month of the tax year for the tax responsibles who have special tax years). Tax authorities may, however,
examine such returns and the underlying accounting records and may revise assessments within five years.
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GARANTI FAKTORING HiZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 3¢ JUNE 2013

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Cont’d)
Income Withholding Tax

In addition to corporate taxes, compani¢s should also calculate income withholding taxes and funds
surcharge on any dividends disiributed, except for companies receiving dividends who are resident
companies in Turkey and Turkish branches of foreign companies. Income tax withholding 24 April 2003 -
22 July 2006 is 10% among all companies. This rate since 22 July 2006, by the Council of Ministers No.
2006/10731 of 15% is applied. Undistributed dividends incorporated in share capital are not subject to
income tax withholding.

Withholding tax at the rate of 19,8% is still applied to investment allowances relating to investment
incentive certificates obtained prior to 24 April 2003. Subsequent to this date, the investments without
investment incentive certificates do not qualify for tax allowance.

Reconciliation of tax charge

30 June 2013 30 June 2012
Reported profit before taxation . 13.478 13.785
Calculated taxation on reported profit (2.696) (2.757)
Permanent differences:
Non-deductible expenses 9 (100)
Other non-taxable income 4) 37
Reversal of overaccrual of ‘
prior year tax provision (8 4
Other - 54
Tax Charge (2.699) 2.770)

The corporate tax payable as at 30 June 2013 and 31 December 2012 is as follows:

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
Corporate tax provision 4.147 7.359
Advance taxes (2.297) (5.399)
Witholding income taxes - (13)
Corporate Tax Payable (Note 15) 1.850 1.947

The tax charge in the income statement for the period ended as at 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012 is as
summarized below:

1 January- 1 April- 1 January- 1 April-
30 June 2013 30 June 2013 30 June 2012 30 June 2012

Current tax charge (4.147) {1.850) {4.553) (2.274)
Reversal of overaccrual of prior

.. 40 40 21 21

year tax provision
Deferred tax charge/(benefif) 1.408 498 1.762 1.237
(2.699) (1.312) (2.770) (1.016)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES {Cont’d)

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

The effective corporate tax rate is 20% as at 30 June 2013 (31 December 2012: 20%). The Company
calculates deferred tax assets and liabilities according to the balance sheet liability method on the

temporary differences that will be utilized using the rate 20%.

Breakdown of temporary differences and deferred tax assets and liabilities that are calculated by using

current tax rates as at 30 June 2013, 31 December 2012 are as follows:

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
Temporary Differences
Uneamed factoring interest income 10.548 11.250
Factoring receivable provisions and adjustments 22.661 17.457
Deffered commisions 3.069 3.213
Retirement pay provision 236 210
Unused vacation accrual 662 615
Valuation differences of derivative financial assets 2.556 40
Premium pay provision 721 890
Valuation differences of time deposits - 1
Valuation differences of factoring receivables 63 28
Temporary differences related to deferred tax assets 40.521 33.704
Temporary differences of derivative financial assets 117 277
Temporary differences on tangible and intangible assets 625 662
Valuation differences of funds borrowed 28 50
Temporary differences related to deferved tax liabilities 770 989
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities)
Unearned factoring interest income 2.111 2.250
Factoring receivable provisions and adjustments 4.533 3.491
Deffered commisions 614 643
Retirement pay provision 47 42
Unused vacation acerual ' 132 123
Valuation differences of derivative financial assets 511 8
Premium pay provision 144 178
Valuation differences of factoring receivables - 6
Deferred tax assets 8.106 6.741
Temporary differences of derivative financial assets (23) (55)
Temporary differences on tangible and intangible assets (125) (132)
Valuation differences of funds borrowed - (6) (10)
Deferred tax liabilities (154) (197)
Deferred tax assets (net) 7.952 6.544
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GARANTI FAKTORING HiZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Cont’d)

Movement of deferred tax assets in the period is as follows:

1 January - 1 January -
30 June 2013 30 June 2012
1 January 6.544 4.328
Deferred tax income/ (expense) 1.408 1.762
Balance at the end of the period 7.952 6.090
OTHER ASSETS
Details of other assets as at 30 June 2013 and 31 December 2012 are as follows:
30 June 2013 31 December 2012
TL FC TL FC
Prepaid expenses 425 - 447 -
Receivables related with court expenses 91 i 501 i
Other 261 178 84 164
1.607 178 1.032 164
FUNDS BORROWED

Details of funds borrowed as at 30 June 2013 and 31 December 2012 are as follows:

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
TL FC TL FC
Funds Borrowed 1.227.819 319.482 1.418.443 419.015
1.227.819 319.482 1.418.443 419.015
30 June 2013 31 December 2012
Interest TL Equivalent Interest TL Equivalent
Original Rate Original Rate
Uptol 1 Year Uptol 1 Year
0/ Yk 1}
Amount (%) Year and over Amount (%) Year and over
TL 1.227.819 5,77- 1.227.819 - 1.418.443 6,44- 1.418.443 -
USb 01.151 1,70-4,99 175.447 - 133624 3,07-590 238.197 -
EURO 57.300 4.20-4,50 144,035 - 76.888 4,20-5,51 180.818 -
Total 1.547.301 - 1.837.458 -

* These rates represent the interest rate range of outstanding funds borrowed with fixed and floating rates

as at 30 June 2013 and 31 December 2012,

There is no guarantee given for the funds borrowed as at 30 June 2013 and 31 December 2012.
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14 SUNDRY CREDITORS AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Details of sundry creditors as at 30 June 2013 and 31 December 2012 are as follows:

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
TL FC TL FC

Deferred commissions 3.069 - 3.213 -
Sundry creditors ' 118 1 304 15
Transitory liability accounts 439 287 378 383

3.626 288 682 398
Guarantee payments to customers _ - - 113
Other Liabilities - - - 306

15 TAXES PAYABLE
Details of taxes payable and liabilities as at 30 June 2013 and 31 December 2012 are as follows:

30 June 2013 31 December 2012

TL FC TL FC
Corporate tax payable (*) (Note 11) 1.850 - 1.947 -
Income tax payable 295 - 450 -
Social security premiums payable 565 - 269 -
Stamp tax payable 10 - 11 -
V.AT payable 20 - 20 -
Banking and Insurance Transactions Tax
(BITT) payable 830 - 638 -

3.570 - 3.335 -

* Income tax provision amounting to TL 4.417 thousand presented by netting the advance corporate tax
amounting to TL 2.297 thousand, as at 30 June 2013,

* Income tax provision amounting to TL 7.359 thousand presented by netting the advance corporate tax
amounting to TL 5.399 thousand and income withholding taxes amounting to TL 13 thousand, as at 31
December 2012.

16 PROVISIONS

Details of provisions as at 30 June 2013 and 31 December 2012 are as follows:

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
TL FC TL FC
Provision for employee benefits 1619 - 1.715 -
Provision provided for postdated cheques 88 - 149 -
Other provisions 216 - 216 -
1.923 - 2.080 -
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GARANTI FAKTORING HIZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL™) unless otherwise indicated.)

PROVISIONS (Cont’d)

Provision for Employee Benefits

Provision for employee benefits as of 30 June 2013, include retirement pay provision amounting to TL 236
thousand (31 December 2012: TL 210 thousand), unused vacation accrual amounting to TL 662 thousand -
(31 December 2012: TL 615 thousand} and personnel bonus accrual amounting to TL 721 thousand (31
December 2012: TL 890 thousand).

Retirement Pay Provision

Under the Turkish Labor Law, the Company is required to pay employment termination benefits to each
employee whose contract is terminated after one service year or who is entitled to a retirement at the age of
60 (58 for women) after 25 service vears (20 for women) or who is called for military service or who is
dead. Some transitional provisions related to the pre-retirement service term were excluded from the scope
of the Law since the related law was amended as of 23 May 2002. The amount payable consists of one
month’s salary limited to a maximum of TL 3.129,25 (full) for each period of service as at 30 June 2013
{31 December 2012: TL 3.033,98 (full)).

The principal assumption is that the maximum liability for each year of service will increase parallel with
inflation. Thus, the discount rate applied represents the expected real rate after adjusting for the anticipated
effects of future inflation. Consequently, in the accompanying financial statements as at 30 June 2013, the
provision has been calculated by estimating the present value of the future probable obligation of the
Company arising from the retirement of the employees. The provisions at the respective balance sheet dates
have been calculated assuming an annual inflation rate of between 4,90%-5,00% and a discount rate of
between 7,07%-7,38%, resulting in a real discount rate of approximately 1,975%. (31 December 2012:
inflation rate of between 4,90%-5,00% , discount rate of between 7,07%-7,38%, real discount rate of
1,975%). Estimated ratio for retirement pay amounts that would not be paid because of voluntary leave is
90,%1%. The company, effective from 1 July 2013 the calculation of retirement pay provision for the TL
3.254,44 (full) ceiling amount has taken into consideration (31 December 2012: TL 3.129,25 (full) ceiling
amount has taken into consideration anncunced on 1 January 2013).

Movement of retirement pay provision in the period is as follows:

30 June 2013 30 June 2012
Balance at 1 January 210 145
Interes cost 2 3
Service cost 71 27
Payments during the period (47) {15)
Balance at the end of the period 236 160

Personnel Bonus Accrual

Movement of the personnel bonus provision in the period is as follows:

30 June 2013 30 June 2012
Balance at 1 January 890 -
Paid in the period (789) -
Reversal (101) -
Accrual for the period 721 -
Balance at the end of the period 721 -

32



16
16.1

16.2.

GARANTI FAKTORING HIZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL”} unless otherwise indicated.)
PROVISIONS (Cont’d)

Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont’d)
Unused Vacation Accrual

Movement of the unused vacation accrual during the period is as follows:

30 June 2013 30 June 2612
Balance at 1 January 615 . 583
Paid in the period (23) (34)
Reversal - (43)
Accrual for the period 70 198
Balance at the end of the period 662 702

Other Provisions
Provisions provided for postdate cheques

Movement of provision provided for post date cheques during the period is as follows:

30 June 2013 30 June 2012
Balance at 1 January 149 -
Reversal (134) -
Provision provided for the period (*) 73 94
Balance at the end of the period 88 94

(*) The provisions provided during the period and the cancellation of the satmne provisions due to collections
during the period are presented as a net value.

Other Provisions

As of 30 June 2013, other provisions amounting to TL 216 thousand is provided for ongoing lawsuits and
fines (31 December 2012: TL 316 thousand). The movement of other provisions during the period is as
follows:

30 June 2013 30 June 2012
Balance at 1 January 216 500
Paid in the period - {184)
Balance at the end of the period 216 316
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GARANTI FAKTORING HiZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)
SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY

Paid-in Capital

As at 30 June 2013, the Company’s share capital amounts to TL 21.000 thousand (31 December 2012: TL
21.000 thousand). As at 30 June 2013 the Company has 2.100.000.000 (31 December 2012: 2.100.000.000)
total registered shares consisting of 1.057.724.557 preferred shares and 1.042.275.443 ordinary shares with
a par value of Kurug (KR=0,01 TL) 1 each (31 December 2012: Kr 1).

The Company applied to Capital Markets Board on 21 May 2013 to increase its issued capital from TL
21.000 to TL 79.500 by adding positive differences of capital inflation adjustment, special funds arising
irom the gain on sale of equity participations and extraordinary reserves, by the decision of the Board of
Directors dated May 3, 2013 and the decision no:2013/035, as per the article 6 of the Company's articles of
association. As of the date of this report, this permission process is ongoing.

The inflation adjustments to all shareholders’ equity items can be only available for and used in the bonus
share issue or loss offsetting, while carrying amount of extraordinary reserves can only be used in the
bonus share issue, profit distribution in cash or loss offsetting.

Capital Reserves

As of 30 June 2013, capital reserves of TL 24.844 thousand (31 December 2012: TL 24.844) includes
capital reserves from inflation adjustments to paid-in capital amounting to TL 2.122 thousand (31
December 2012: TL 2.122 thousand), TL 22.722 thousand tangible and intangible assets revaluation
differences (31 December 2012; TL 22.722 thousand).

Profit Reserves

The Company’s profit reserves comprise of the first legal reserves amounting to TL 4.198 thousand (31
December 2012: TL 3.286 thousand) and extraordinary reserves amounting to TL 54.969 thousand (31
December 2011: TL 35.421) as at 30 June 2013.

Profit Distribution
Retained earnings on statutory books can be distributed except for the legal reserves that is specified below.,

The legal reserves consist of the first and second legal reserves, appropriated in accordance with the
Turkish Commercial Code. The first legal reserve is appropriated out of historical statutory profits at the
rate of 5% per annum, until the total reserve reaches 20% of the historical paid-in share capital. The second
legal reserve is appropriated after the first legal reserve and dividends, at the rate of 10% per annum of all
cash dividend distributions. As per Turkish Commercial Code, the first legal reserve can only be offset
against losses to the point that the legal reserves exceed 50% of the paid-in capital,

The capital increase to be made through the internal resources should be based on the lower of the amounts
calculated using the CMB’s accounting standards and the figures recorded in the legal books.
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GARANTI FAKTORING HIZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (Cent’d)
Profit Distribution (Cont’d)

In addition, in accordance with the requirements of the Turkish Commercial Code, the Company is
primarily required to appropriate legal reserves from the statutory records. If net distributable profit in legal
books is greater than the CMB net distributable profit, all of the CMB net distributable profit should be
distributed, if not, all of the net distributable profit in the legal books should be distributed. If loss is

incurred as per the Company’s CMB financial statements or in the legal books, no profit distribution is
made,

2012 PROFIT DISTRIBUTION TABLE
2012 Profit 20.460
A- 1. Legal reserves (Turkish Commercial Code 466/1) at 5 % (*) 912

Special Reserves (Article 5 of the 5520 Act KV 1/ e subparagraph, sales
gains are exempt from tax and other funds that is compulsary to leave
in company.)

B- First dividend at 5% of the paid-in-capital -
Extraordinary reserves at 5% after above deductions -
D- Second dividend to shareholders -
E- Extraordinary reserves 19.548

(*) Deferred tax benefit of TL 2.215 in year 2012, has not been included in the profit distirbution.

18

OPERATING INCOME
The details of operating income for the periods ended as of 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012 are as follows:

1 January - 1 April - 1 January - 1 April -

30 June 2013 30 June 2013 30 June 2012 30 June 2012

Factoring interest income 56.039 27.440 60.451 27.767

Factoring commission income 12114 6.343 10.080 4.402
(net)

68.353 33.783 70.531 32.169
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GARANTI FAKTORING HiZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

OPERATING EXPENSES
The details of operating expenses for the periods ended as of 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012 are as
follows:
1 January - 1April- 1 January- 1 April -
30 June 2013 30 June 2013 _ 30 June 2012 _ 30 June 2012
Personnel expenses 10.447 5.141 8.782 4316
Customer referral commission expenses 1.936 851 1.693 932
Vehicle expenses 1.001 510 885 462
Taxes and duties 604 231 043 357
Rent expenses 731 371 645 387
Depreciation and amortization charges 646 338 605 372
Data processing maintenance and contract
expenses - - 454 454
Commmunication expenses 444 235 441 211
Consultancy expenses 310 196 243 124
Subscription expenses 155 79 159 84
Maintenance and repair expenses 84 28 66 26
Retirement pay provision 73 37 30 15
Travel expenses 65 40 71 54
Representation expenses 45 26 119 96
Case expenses 11 1 4 2
Non-deductible expenses 12 7 - -
Other 382 202 658 388
16.946 8.293 15.798 8.280
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GARANTI FAKTORING HIZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL™") unless otherwise indicated.)

OPERATING EXPENSES (Cont’d)

The details of personnel expenses classified under operating expenses for the years end as at 30 June 2013

and 2012 are as follows:

1 January - 1 April - 1 January - 1 April -

30 June 2013 30 June 2013 30 June 2012 30 June 2012

Salaries 7.409 3.730 6.464 3.306
Bonuses 721 343 317 13
Social security premium employer’s share 829 399 717 364
Personnel food expenses 338 171 367 176
Personnel transportation expenses 273 137 250 125
Insurance expenses 212 109 183 90
Unemployment insurance employer’s share 109 53 77 31
Other 556 199 407 211
10.447 5141 8.782 4316

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

The details of other operating income for the periods ended as at 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012 are as

follows: '
1 January - 1 April- 1 January - 1 April -
30 June 2013 30 June 2013 30 June 2012 30 June 2012
Foreign exchange gains 33.904 18.813 19.825 7.687
Interest income on bank deposits 2.632 1.628 121 03
Incotne on derivative financial transactions 603 - 23.840 8.884
Interest income on marketable securities - - 201 104
Other 557 107 476 143
37.696 20.548 44.463 16.881
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GARANTI FAKTORING HiZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

21 FINANCE EXPENSES

The details of finance expenses for the periods ended as at 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012 are as follows:

1 January - 1 April - 1 January - 1 April -

30 June 2013 30 June 2013 30 June 2012 30 June 2012

Interest expenses on funds borrowed 36.704 18.035 39.939 ' 19.254
Fees and commissions paid 351 189 488 273
Other interest expenses 4 - 1 -
37.059 18.224 40.428 19.527

22 SPECIFIC PROVISIONS FOR NON-PERFORMING RECEIVABLES
The details of provision for non-performing receivables for the periods ended as at 30 June 2013 and 30
June 2012 are as follows:

1 January - 1 April - 1 January - 1 April -
30 June 2013 30 June 2013 30 June 2012 30 June 2012

Specific provision expenses 5.577 3.083 1.507 219
5.577 3.083 1.507 219

23 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

The details of other operating expenses for the periods ended as at 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012 are as

follows:
1 January - 1 April - 1 January - 1 April -
30 June 2013 30 June 2013 30 June 2012 30 June 2012
Foreign exchange losses 26.422 13.747 19.459 7.822
Losses c'm derivative financial 6.494 4487 23.923 2 071
transactions
Other 73 (48) 04 04
32.989 18.680 43.476 15.987
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GARANTI FAKTORING HIiZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL”)} unless otherwise indicated.)

EXPLANATIONS REGARDING RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Calculation of earnings per share for the periods ended as at 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012 are as
follows:
1 January - 1 April - 1 January - 1 April -

30 June 2013 30 June 2013 30 June 2012 30 June 2012
Net profit/(loss) for the period 10.779 5.233 11.015 4.021
Weighted average number of shares with 1 10 000 5100000 2100000 2.100.000
KR of nominal value (thousand)
Earnings per thousand shares (KR) 513,29 249,19 524,52 191,48

The details of receivables and payables due from related parties as of 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012 are as

follows:

30 June 2013

31 December 2012

TL FC TL FC
Bank balances
Tiirkiye Garanti Bankast A.S. 1 623 2.252 356
Demand deposits 1 623 2.252 356
Garantibank International NV 2 9 2 9
Demand deposits 2 9 2 9
3 632 503 3.120

The amount of cheques and notes at custody of Tiirkiye Garanti Bankasi A.$. related with factoring

receivables as at 30 June 2013 is TL 568.235 thousand (31 December 2012: TL 502.257 thousand).

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
TL FC TL FC
Factoring receivables
Dogus Yayin Grubu AS - - 1 -
Arena Giyim Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S. - - 1372
- - 1.373 -
30 June 2013 31 December 2012
TL FC TL FC
Loans received
Tiirkiye Garanti Bankas1 AS 151.095 - 69.025 -
(Garantibank International NV 103.072 19.501 100.361 51.572
254.167 19.501 169.386 51.572
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GARANTI FAKTORING HIZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira {thousands of “TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

EXPLANATIONS REGARDING RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
TL FC TL FC

Sundry creditors
Garanti Finansal Kiralama AS 17 - 31 0
Tiirkiye Garanti Bankas: AS - - 15 0
Garanti Emeklilik AS - 1 0 8
Garanti Filo Yonetimi AS 35 - 41 0
Antur Turizm AS - - 19 0

52 1 106 8

The Company has made purchases amounting to TL 754 thousand from Garanti Bilisim Teknolojisi ve
Ticaret A.$ for the period ended 30 June 2013 (30 June 2012: TL. 359 thousand).

Income and expenses from related parties for the periods ended as at 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012 are as

follows:
1 Jamnary - 1 April - 1 January - 1 April -
30 June 2013 30 June 2013 30 June 2012 30 June 2012
Interest income from factoring
receivables
Dogus Yaymn Grubu AS - - 2.764 1.812
Arena Giyim Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S. 26 4 .- -
26 4 2.764 1.812
Interest income on bank deposits
Tiirkiye Garanti Bankasi AS 1.820 1.479 4 2
1.820 1.479 4 2
Commission income from factoring
receivables
Dogus Yayin Grubu AS 46 2 981 535
Dogus Grubu Ifetisim Yaymn AS 6 1 21 12
Isil Televizyon Yayincilik AS - - 21 -
Arena Giyim Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S. 1 - 0 -
53 3 1.023 - 547
Interest expenses on funds borrowed
Tiirkiye Garanti Bankas1 AS 188 141 254 149
Garanti Bank International NV 2.910 754 7.979 3.524
3.098 895 8.233 3.673
Fees and commissions given
Tiirkiye Garanti Bankasi AS 149 87 132 80
149 87 132 30
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26.1

GARANTI FAKTORING HiZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira {thousands of “TL") unless otherwise indicated.)
EXPLANATIONS REGARDING RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

1 January - 1 April - 1 Jamuary - 1 April -

General Administrati
eneral Administrative Expenses 30 June 2013 30 June 2013 30 June 2012 30 June 2012

Tiirkiye Garanti Bankas1 AS (Customer

referral commission expenses and rent 2.116 947 985
expenses) 1825
Garanti Filo Y&netim Hizmetler AS
591 268
(Car rental expenses) 303 536 6
Garanti Bilisim Teknolojisi ve Ticaret AS 185
(Data processing expenses) ) 385
Antur Turizm AS
31
{Traveling expenses) o2 41 31
Dogus Oto Pazarlama ve Ticaret AS o ) 1
(Car expences) 1
Garanti Finansal Kiralama AS
282 128 117
(Office rent expenses, medical expenses) 8 219
3.081 1.421 2.997 1.787

Salary and other benefits provided to top management:

The amount of salary and other benefits provided to the key management by the Company for the period
ended as at 30 June 2013 is TL 1.351 thousand (30 June 2012: TL 1.014 thousand).

CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Guarantees Received

Guarantees received for the Company’s factoring receivables as at 30 June 2013 and 31 December 2012 is
as follows;

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
TL FC TL FC
Customer notes - 1.634.778 - 1.098.508
Mortgage 33.850 - 33.850 -
Chattel mortgage 3.515 - - -
Letters of guarantee 60 23.504 60 32.016
37.425 1.658.282 33.910 1.130.524
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GARANTI FAKTORING HIZMETLERI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL™) unless otherwise indicated.)

26 CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Cont’d)

26.2 Guarantees Given

Guarantees given as at 30 June 2013 and 31 December 2012 consist of letters of guarantee given to the
institutions below:

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
TL FC TL ¥C
Law courts . 2272 - 1.141 -
Other 7 - 7 -
2.279 - 1.148 -

26.3 Investments in Debt Securities

TL equivalent of nominal values of commitments given related to credit linked notes (Please refer to Note
4) as at 30 June 2013 is as follows:

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
TL FC TL FC
Commitments given related to the
Credit Linked Notes - - - 1.981
Foreign exchange buy-sell
commitments 4f983 3043 3.415 3.586
4.983 5.043 3.415 5.567

26,4  Currency Swap Buy-Sell Agreements

The details of currency swap buy and sell agreements as at 30 June 2013 and 31 December 2012 is as

follows:
30 June 2013 31 December 2012

TL FC TL FC
Currency swap buy transactions 126.419 16.908 90.845 43.036
Currency swap sell transactions 1.736 141.494 - 133.554
Interest swap buy transactions - 18.853 - 31.748
Interest swap sell transactions - 18.853 - 31.748
128.155 196.108 90.845  240.086

26.5  Safety Securities

The details of cheques and notes in collection as at 30 June 2013 and 31 December 2012 is as follows:

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
TL FC TL FC
Cheque receivable in collection 508.444 78.572 446.762 07.141
Notes receivable in collection 12.600 7.257 5.387 9723

521.044 85.829 452.149 76.864
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27.1.1

GARANTI FAKTORING HiZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial Risk Management Purposes and Policies

The Company is exposed to various risks during its operations:
Credit Risk

Liquidity Risk
Market Risk

The purpose of this note is to give information about the Company’s objectives, policies and processes for
the management of above risks when exposed to these risks.

The Company’s Board of Directors is broadly responsible for the determination of the risk management
framework and supervigion activities,

The Company’s risk management policies are constituted for identifying and analyzing the risks that the
Company can be exposed to. Risk management policies’ objective is to comprise suitable risk limit
controls, monitoring the risks and keeping to the limits for the Company’s risks. The Company helps its
personnel to understand their roles and responsibilities by providing disciplined and positive control
environment with various training and management standards and processes.

Credit Risk

The Company is subject to credit risk through its factoring operations. The Risk Management and Analysis
Department of the Company is responsible to manage the credit risk. The Company requires a certain
amount of collateral in respect of its financial assets. The Company management developed controls for
early phases of credit approval and credit risk monitoring and management has a credit policy in place and
the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. The Company does not enter into factoring
transaction with the firms which do not meet the predetermined criteria for credit approval. Credit
evaluations are performed on all customers by Credit Risk Committee based on their authorization limits.
Credit Risk Committee meets every week regularly and performs credit evaluations. As at the balance sheet
date, there were no significant industry or geographical concentrations of credit risk. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet.

27.1.2 Liguidity Risk

27.1.3

Liquidity risk arises in the general funding of the Company’s activities. It includes both risk of being
unable to fund assets at appropriate maturities and rates and risk of being unable to liquidate an asset at a
reasonable price and in an appropriate time frame. The Company has access to funding sources from banks.
The Company continuously assesses liquidity risk by identifying and monitoring changes in funding
required in meeting business goals and targets set in terms of the overall Company strategy.

Mavrket Risk

All held for trading financial instruments are exposed to market risk. Market risk is the risk that changes in
market prices will decrease the value of a financial asset. All financial instruments are stated at fair value
and the changes in market prices affect operating income of the Company.

The Company hedges itself for the changing market conditions through held for trading financial
instruments. Market risk is managed through derivatives within the limits approved by management and
risk preventive positions are held.
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GARANTI FAKTORING HiZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

{ Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)
27 NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
27.1  Financial Risk Management Purposes and Policies (Cont’d)
27.1.3  Market Risk (Cont’d)

(i) Foreign Currency Risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk through transactions (such as factoring operations and
borrowings) in foreign currencies. As the currency in which the Company presents its financial statements
is TL, the financial statements are affected by movements in the exchange rates against TL. The Company
uses derivative instruments to manage its exposure to foreign currency risk.

(ii} Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s operations are subject to the risk of interest rate fluctuations to the extent that interest
earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities mature or re-price at different times or in differing amounts.
The Company is also exposed to interest rate risk due to its assets and liabilities with floating rates such as
Euribor and repricing of them. Risk management activities are aimed at optimizing net interest income,
given market interest rate levels consistent with the Company’s business strategies.
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27.2
27.2.2

GARANTI FAKTORING HIiZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Explanations on Risk Management {cont’d)

Liguidity Risk

The following table provides an analysis for the Company’s financial liabilities by grouping the contractual
maturities as of the balance sheet date. Amounts in the following table are the undiscounted contractual

cash flows:
30 June 2013
More than
" Carrying  Total Expected Less than 3
1 Maturit ° - th 15 5
Contractual Maturities Amount  Cash Outflows Months 3-12 mon year years
Non-derivative financial liabilities 1.553.863 1.557.595 1482415 75.180 - -
Funds borrowed 1.547.301 1.551.033  1.475.853 75.180 - -
Factoring payables 2.648 2.648 2.648 - -
Sundry creditors 3.914 3914 3.914 - -
More than
- Carrying  Total Expected Less than3
1 Maturit = - th 1-5
Contractual Maturities Amount  Cash Outflows Months 3-12 mon year  Syears
Derllvatlve financial liabilities ar{d 103 103 103 i ] _
foreign exchange buy-sell commitments
Derivative cash inflows 167.195 167.195 167.195 - - -
Derivative cash outflows (167.092) (167.092)  (167.092) - - -
31 December 2012
More than
- Carrying  Total Expected Less than3
1M - th 15
Contractual Maturities Amount  Cash Outflows Months 3-12 mon year  5years
Non-derivative financial liabilities 1.844.648 1.855.011 1.520.142 320.205 14.664 -
Funds borrowed 1.837.458 1.847.321 1.512.952 320.205 14.664 -
Factoring payables 2.897 2.897 2.897 - -
Sundry creditors 4,293 4,293 4293 - - -
More than
- Carrying  Total Expected Lessthan3
- -5
Contractual Maturities Amomnt  Cash Outflows Months 3-12 month  1-Syear  5years
Derl.vatlve financial liabilities an.d 113 133 3133 i ) )
foreign exchange buy-sell commitments
Derivative cash inflows 169.132 169.132 169.132 - - -
Derivative cash outflows (168.799) (168.799)  (168.799) - - -
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27.2.3

GARANTI FAKTORING HIZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
Explanations on Risk Management (cont’d)

Market Risk
Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk arising from the value changes on financial instruments related with
the change in exchange rates. The Company is exposed to currency risk due to its foreign currency
borrowings. The currencies that the foreign currency risk of the Company mainly arises from are
USD, Euro and GBP. As the financial statements of the Company are presented in TL, the financial
statements are affected by fluctuations in these exchange rates against TL. The Company’s net
short/(long) position arises from the assets, liabilities and derivative financial instruments in foreign
currencies as at 30 June 2013 and 31 December 2012.

Foreign currency assets and liabilities as at 30 June 2013 and 31 December 2012 are as follows:

30 June 2013 31 December 2012

{TL equivalent in (TL equivalent in

thousands) thousands)

A. Foreign currency monetary assets 450.924 512.126
B. Foreign currency monetary liabilities (321.731) (422.057)
C. Derivative financial instruments {128.616) (92.719)
Net foreign currency position (A+B+C) 577 (2.650)
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GARANTI FAKTORING HiZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
Explanations on Risk Management (cont’d)

Market Risk (Cont'd)
Foreign currency sensitivity risk

10% decrease in the TL against the relevant foreign currencies as of 30 June 2013 results with a decrease
in profit before tax for the period amounting to TL 58 thousand (30 June 2012: TL 129 thousand decrease).
This analysis is made with the assumption that the other variables were held constant as of 3¢ June 2013
and 30 June 2012.

TL

30 June 2013 Profit/(L.oss)
usD (289)
EURO 255
GBP 92
Total 58
TL

30 June 2012 Profit/(Loss)
USD (25)
EURO 91
GBP 63
Total 129

Interest Rate Risk

Weighted average effective interest rates applied to financial instruments as at 30 June 2013 and 31
December 2012 are as follows:

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
USD EURQO GBP TL USD EURO GBP TL

(%) ()] (%) (%) (&) () (%) Yo

Assets

Banks

Time Deposit - - - - - - - -
Financial instruments
held for trading
Financial instruments
available for sale
Factoring receivables 4.63 492 5,37 9,43 5,71 3,64 6,21 9,19
Liabilities
Funds borrowed 413 4,27 - 7,22 4,52 4,51 - 7,28

- - . - 232 - - .
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GARANTI FAKTORING HIZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL*) unless otherwise indicated.)

NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {Cont’d)
Explanations on Risk Management (cont’d)

Market Risk (Cont’d)

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis

The Cempany’s financial instruments that have interest rate sensitivity as at 30 June 2013 and 31
December 2012 are as follows:

Carrying Value

Fixed Rate 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
Factoring receivables 1.456.580 1.505.352
Time deposits - 102.823
Funds borrowed 1.528.242 1.805.458
Floating Rate

Factoring receivables 196.932 322.358
Financial investments - 1.984
Funds borrowed 19.059 32.000

If interest rates of the floating rate instruments denominated in USD and EURQ were 100 basis points
higher/lower at the date of reissue and all other variables were constant as of 30 June 2013, net income for
the period would decrease/increase by TL 1.179 thousand TL (31 December 2012: TL 2.923 thousand) as a
result of higher/lower interest expense from floating interest rate financial instruments.

Capital Risk Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the profit through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure
of the Company consists of debt, cash and cash equivalents and equity comprising issued capital, reserves
and retained earnings disclosed in Note 17.

The Company management reviews the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.
As part of this review, the management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital and presents to the Board of Directors for approval.

The overall strategy of the Company did not differ materially from the prior period.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company has calculated fair values of financial instruments using available market information and
appropriate valuation methodologies. However, as the judgment is necessary to interpret market data to
determine the estimated fair value, the calculated fair values may not be fully reflective of the value that
could be realized in the current circumstances. Management assumes that the fair value of funds borrowed
and marketable securities approximate their carrying value as they were repriced just before the balance
sheet date due to their floating interest rates like Euribor and etc. Management also assumes that the fair
values of other financial assets and labilities at amortized cost including cash and banks, other financial
assets and short term bank loans denominated in TL approximate their carrying values due to their short
term nature.
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GARANTI FAKTORING HIZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira {thousands of “TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments Classification

The table below presents the fair value determination method of the financial instruments at fair value. The
method for each level is as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

30 June 2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets available for sale - - 2 2
Financial assets heid for trading - - - -
Derivative financial assets held for trading . - 117 - 117
- 117 2 119
Derivative financial liabilities held for trading - 2.556 - 2.556
- 2.556 - 2.556
31 December 2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets available for sale - - 2 2
Financial assets held for trading - - 1.984 1.984
Derivative financial assets held for trading - 277 - 277
- 277 1.986 2.263
Derivative financial liabilities held for trading - 40 - 40
- 40 - 40
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
None.
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